State of Tennessee
RFP Number 317.03-119

GPS Surveying Equipment – Department of Transportation

 Questions
Event # 9325
Responses to Written Comments

	Item#
	Question
	Response

	
	Note: in the questions that follow, any vendor's restatement of the text of the Event is for reference purposes only and shall not be construed to change the original Event wording.
	

	1. 
	Terms and Conditions document: 23. Insurance Required

We had asked for clarification on the statement: Certificates for liability coverages shall name the State of Tennessee Central Procurement Office as an additional insured.  Can someone clarify to whom this insurance is actually covering? Is this only for the vendor and their contractors or is it for any TDOT employees’ working anywhere even if not related to using the vendor’s supplies equipment.
	This covers only the vendor’s employees and their contractors.

	2. 
	Specifications - 3.1.1.14

What is TDOT looking for on this line item 3.1.1.14 External Charger for the DC?
All DC's will come with a 12V power Adapter to charge from the power port in the vehicle.

Are you looking for an external charging tray to place the extra battery in a charge in the vehicle or AC charger back at the office?
	External AC charging tray for use in the office. 

	3. 
	Specifications - Section 3.1.5 Minimum Requirement of Robotic Total Station - Subsection 3.1.5.8

Since on-board data collection is not required per the specifications, will the requirement of a removable CompactFlash or SD card be removed, if not USB connection or equivalent will be allowed.  What will be robotic reflector less minimum range?
	USB port or equivalent
Robotic reflector less minimum range shall be 300 meter. (will be revised as subsection 3.1.5.9)



	4. 
	Specifications - Section 1 Scope Subsection 1.3.7 
Should this also read or equivalent?
	It should read “Carlson Surveyor+ GNSS System
or equivalent. 

	5. 
	Specifications - Subsection 1.3.8 – 1.3.13, 1.3.22
Warranty clarification, contract runs from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2019, if equipment is bought in the second year of this contract period will warranty only be for two years?
	If equipment is purchased in Year 2 and the warranty on the equipment is three years, then the warranty will go beyond the contract period it does not end when the contract ends.



	6. 
	Section 4 General Requirements

Subsection 4.4 – What frequency range will TDOT need and will it be acceptable for a vendor to use an outside agency to complete documents?
	Use typical TDOT survey range as the minimum.
The vendors are allowed to use an outside agency to complete documents before we sign them.

	7. 
	Bid lines 6 & 7
Need to know the difference or further explanation of these lines.

GPS Surveying System, Base & Rover Kit Option 1 vs. GPS Surveying System, Base & Rover Kit Option 2.
	Option 1 is for GNSS receiver – Carlson BRx5, Topcon GR-5, Leica Viva series, or equivalent.
Option 2 is for GNSS receiver – Carlson Surveyor+ GNSS system, Topcon GRS-1, or equivalent.

	8. 
	What are the minimum acceptable signals that the GPS equipment can track?  L1 + L2 (&L2C) I understand to be the minimum.  What about L5?

The GPS constellation currently broadcasts L1, L2 & L2C which are all the ones used for GPS capable systems that are being broadcast at present.  The L5 signal is in prospect but not yet viable and not so for some time to come, because less the half of the current GPS constellation are capable of broadcasting L5 and there are likely not going to be sufficient numbers in orbit before the end of the three-year contract period.
	L1 + L2 (&L2C) is the minimum acceptable

	9. 
	Specification - 3.1.5

Is it of the intention for TDOT to have a data collection screen and key board on the Robotic total station, for flexible use as a manual station?

	TDOT will operate the robotic total station with a remote data collector.  On-board field software is not required.

	10. 
	Specification - 3.1.5

Would TDOT consider use of imaging built into the scope of the Robotic total station?
	TDOT is not interested in imaging capabilities of the robotic total station.  The unit will be used for single shot data collection.

	11. 
	Specification - 3.1.5

Would TDOT consider a reflector less R500 EDM to measure any surface at a distance of 1640.42ft?
	TDOT would like reflectorless capabilities for shots up to 300 meters.

	12. 
	Specification - 3.1.5
Does TDOT wish to have a Robotic total station specified to achieve automated power search and target recognition with target filter learn capabilities?
	The robotic total station shall search and lock on to a prism by using an internal drive system.

	13. 
	Specification - 3.4.3

Does TDOT wish consider amending Carbon fiber pole to aluminum reflector pole resulting in cost savings towards bid?
	TDOT desires carbon fiber poles.

	14. 
	Line items 1-3

Are they to be simply field data collectors set to control GPS and TPS systems or do they need internal GNSS antenna integrated into the standalone unit?
	The GNSS antenna shall be separate from the data collector. TDOT prefers an internal antenna on the receiver like that found on the Lecia Viva series.

	15. 
	Lines 1 - 3

Why is one specified as a Trimble unit?

Line  Description                                                            Manufacturer    Qty  UOM
1     GPS Surveying System, Handheld Full Keypad    Trimble             24     each

2    GPS Surveying System, Handheld Tablet                                         12     each

3.  GPS Surveying System, Handheld Compact                                      43     each
	It is meant to be equivalent.
Same as “Topcon” on line 6.

All Manufacture names are to be removed from this column

	16. 
	Line 4
The quantity is greater than the sum of requested data collectors, does TDOT wish to purchase extra quantities of software (this may bring added costs)?
Software, Field Surveying Data Collector     87   each
	TDOT wishes to purchase extra quantities of software for multiple workstations. 

	17. 
	Concerning total amount of GPS base and rover kits and Robotic total stations (sum of 96 units) is greater than the sum of data collectors requested to run the said equipment, is it of TDOTs intention to purchase more stations than field controllers?
	All receivers shall be capable of operating as a base or rover.  TDOT would like a bid on 62 receivers.  Some of these receivers will operate as a base, but the majority will be rovers. The 16 units on line 7 are for a network rover system.

	18. 
	Lines 6 - 7
What is total quantity of GPS antenna units for the list below said Base& Rover kits, is it to be, 62 antennas making 31 kits or 62 kits consisting of 124 antennas (significant cost difference)?
Line  Description                                                                  Manufacturer    Qty  UOM

1     GPS Surveying System, Base & Rover Kit Option 1    TOPCON          62     each

2    GPS Surveying System, Base & Rover Kit Option 2                              16     each
	All receivers shall be capable of operating as a base or rover.  TDOT would like a bid on 62 receivers.  Some of these receivers will operate as a base, but the majority will be rovers. The 16 units on line 7 are for a network rover system.

	19. 
	Subsection 1.3.23.6 – 1.3.23.9
Each Vendor will be given two hours to complete the above tasks.  Can this time be expanded, given the vendor has to wait for the CORS data to become available?
	This answer was provided in a separate email.

The specifications read:  Each vendor will be given two hours to complete the above tasks. Vendor’s report will summarize the above results and will be presented to TDOT regional survey staff the following day.

The field test should be around 2 to 3 hours.  TDOT understands the results of the field test will take longer and those results are not due to TDOT until the next day.

	20. 
	Subsection 1.3.23.6
Gather topographic data of twenty points with base/rover system, download to vendor software, perform adjustment calculations, and export text file.

Need clarification on what type adjustment to radial shots from a known point.
	This answer was provided in a separate email.

Please only adjust the traverse via least squares. No need to adjust the radial shots.

	21. 
	1.3.23.9
Stake a fictitious roadway centerline consisting of two tangents and a horizontal curve.  Demonstrate slope staking routine.

How will this data be supplied to the vendor?
	This answer was provided in a separate email.

TDOT will provide the starting point, tangent & direction, horizontal curve, and exit tangent. Vertical will be a 0% grade with a road template of two 10' lanes and 3:1 slope. TDOT will provide the values at the time of the field trial.

	22. 
	Vendor’s report will summarize the above results and will be presented to TDOT regional survey staff the following day.

Needs clarification, the discussion yesterday indicated all data would be processed on-site and delivered at the conclusion of the field trial.
	This answer was provided in a separate email.

Data will not be processed on-site; it will be due the next day.  Report will provide all coordinate values and control point standard deviations and total station loop closure.



	23. 
	While putting together a comprehensive list of equipment we are projecting to bid I noticed and I am concerned with the amount of Data Collector Brackets or Claw Clamps requested. If you add the number of Collectors with full keypads, along with tablets, and along with compact collectors and also the Network Rover Receivers there is the possibility of needing a total of 95 data collector brackets. The only area I see brackets listed is with the Rover Accessory Kits and the Robotic Total Station Accessory kits and that total is 66 and will not give you an equal amount of bracket to collectors. I also notice that it is not accurately addressed as to what type of collector is to be used with the GPS Rover or with the Robotic Total Station so as a bidder we will not know precisely how to bid.

As a minimum I would suggest that the Robotic Accessory kit 3.4 list the claw holder specifically for a Full Keypad collector or other.

Suggest that the Rover Accessory kit 3.2., list the claw holder especially for what type of collector.
	Each data collector will have a claw clamp.  This number should be 67.  24 full keypad and 43 compact.  The tablets will be used for observing static observations and will not require a claw clamp.

	24. 
	Will you send out a roster of the attendees with the summary of the questions I understand that you are going to compile?
	Yes

	25. 
	I am not certain if we are to get copies of the questions and, hopefully, answers or simply a revised bid spec that will reflect any changes or clarifications.
	Questions/Answers are sent out with the bid.  All revisions have been made in the document.  Please read those carefully.
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